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October 6, 2016

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
510 Alonzo Watson Drive

South Bend, IN 46601

We have reviewed the audit report prepared by Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A., Certified Public
Accountants, for the period October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2014. In our opinion, the audit report was
prepared in accordance with the guidelines established by the State Board of Accounts. Per the
Independent Auditor's Report, the financial statements included in the report present fairly the financial
condition of the City of South Bend Housing Authority, as of September 30, 2014 and the results of its
operations for the period then ended, on the basis of accounting described in the report.

The Independent Auditor’'s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government
Auditing Standards reports a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. It is Finding
2014-001 in Section Il of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 is qualified for various compliance requirements on all major
programs. These Section Ill findings of noncompliance are also material weaknesses in internal control.
These are as follows:

Finding CEDA Compliance Requirement
2014-002 14.850, 14.871, and Reporting
14.872
2014-003 14.850 Eligibility
2014-004 14.850 Special Tests and Provision
2014-005 14.871 Eligibility
2014-006 and 2014-007 14.871 Special Tests and Provision
2014-008 and 2014-013 14.871 Reporting
2014-009 14.872 Davis-Bacon Act
2014-010 through 2014-012 14.850 Special Tests and Provision
2014-014 14.850 Activities Allowed or
Unallowed
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The audit report is filed with this letter in our office as a matter of public record.

Paul D. Joyce, CPA
State Examiner
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Commissionars
Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Autherity of the City of South Bend
("Authority”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation cf these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant fo the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General af the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfoerming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the effectiveness ¢f the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Housing Authority of the City of Seulh Bend, as of September 30, 2014, and the changes in
financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information




Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such informatian, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it fo be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
cerlain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses {o our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial slatements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming an opinion on the financial statements that coliectively
comprise the Housing Authority of the Cily of South Bend's basic financial statements. The accompanying
financial information listed in the Table of Contents as Supplementary Information and the Financial Data
Schedule are presented for additicnal analysis and are not a requited part of the financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

This other information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly o the
underlying accounting and cther records used {o prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciting such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the financial information listed in the
Table of Contents as Supplementary Information, the Financial Data Schedule and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation o the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15, 2016,
on our consideration of the Authcrity’s internal control over financial reperting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance,

Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A.
Ceriified Public Accountants
August 15, 2016
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South Beng, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Housing Authority of the City of South Bend, Indiana ("Authority”) annual
financial report presents management's discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial
performance during the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2014. Please read it in
conjunction with the financial statements which begin on page 11.

We are pleased to submit the financial statements of the Authority for the year ended September 30,
2014. The accuracy of the data presented in the financial statements, as well as its completeness .
and fairness of presentaticn, is the responsibility of management. All necessary disclosures fo
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority's financial affairs have been included in
the foctnotes accompanying the general purpose financial statements. The purpose of the financial
statements is tc provide complete and accurate financial information that complies with reporting
requirements of the U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") and the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The management's discussion and analysis section includes information on the past and future
accomplishments of the Authority. It focuses on analysis of the financial staterments and the
improvements inthe Authority's management.

The financial section provides both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in
the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section
of other supplementary information that further explains and supperts the information in the financial
statements.

Additionally, the Authority is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Amendments and the United States Office of Management and
Budget's [OMB) Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations as provided in
OMB Circular A-133. Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, the independent auditors’ reports on internal controls and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to government units,




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Financial Highlights

= Total assets were approximately $9.6 million at September 30, 2014, a decrease of $1.0
milion from the September 30, 2013 balance cof approximately $10.6 million. The
decrease primarily related to the current year depreciation of capital assets.

= Net capital assets were approximately $6.5 million at September 30, 2014, representing a
$300,000 decrease from the September 30, 2013, balance of approximately $7.4 million.

= Net position at September 30, 2014 totaled approximately $8.3 milion and represented a
decrease of$1.3 millien from the September 30, 2013 balance of approximately $9.6
million. The decrease was due to current year expenses exceeding current year revenue.

= Total liabilities increased from approximately $1.0 milion at September 30, 2013 to
approximately $1.3 million, or by 32.4%, at Sepiember 30, 2014. Long-term liabiiities and
accrued liabilities had the largest increases.

« Revenues also decreased by $1.8 million from approximately $19 milion during fiscal year
2013 to approximately $17.3 million in fiscal year 2014. The decrease was primarily due
to a decrease in HUD operating and capital grants.

- Operating expenses, excluding depreciation, decreased by $1.7 million, or by 9.1%, to
approximately $17.3 million at September 30, 2014, from approximately $18 million at
September 30, 2013.

Using this Report

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's
finances in a manner similar to a private sector business. These financial statements report on the
functions of the Authority that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues. The Authotity's
function is to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing to low-income and special needs
populations, which is primarily funded with grant revenue received from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Develcpment (HUD).

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Autherity's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority Is improving or
deteriorating, or otherwise changing ina dramatic manner.

The Siatement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present information detailing
how the Authority's net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event given rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., depreciation and earned but unused
vacation keave).




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Authority's cash receipts and cash
payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net
changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and capital and related financing activities.

Overview of the Financial Reports

The Authority's basic financial statements are presented as a single enterprise  fund whose

operafions include the low rent and the housing choice voucher and a lead based paint programs as
foliows.

Fund Financial Slalernents are groupings of accounts used to maintain control over resources
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other state, local, or quasi
governments, uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The Authority's fund only consisted of a Proprietary Fund.

The Authority's Proprietary Fund is comprised of enterprise funds with *business-type" activities
intended to recover all or a portion of their costs through fees and charges for services. Since the
Authority maintains its activities in enterprise funds, its Proprietary Fund financial statements provide
information about the activities of the Authority as a whole.

Low-income Public Housing - Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents
units it owns to low-income families. The Conventionai Public Housing Program is operated under an
Annuat Contribution Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD provides an operating subsidy to enable the
Avuthority to provide housing at a rent that is based upon 30% of adjusted gross household income.

Capital Fund Program (CFF) - The Conventional Puklic Housing Program also includes the CFP,
which is the primary funding source for physical management improvements to the Authority's
properties, CFP funding is based on a formula allocation that takes into consideration the size and
age of the authorities housing stock.

Section 8 Housing Assistance-Vouchers - The Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV) Is the federal
government's largest program for assisting low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford
deceni, safe, and sanitary housing in the private market. Housing Choice vouchers are administered
locally by public housing authorities (PHAs). The PHAs receive funds from HUD to administer the
voucher program. A housing subsidy is paid to the landlord directly by the PHA on behalf of the
participating family. The family then pays the difference between the actual rent charged by the landlord
and the amount subsidized by the program.

Lead-Based Paint Frogram - lLead-Based Paint Hazard Control (LHC) and the Lead Hazard
Reduction (LHBD) grant programs are intended to identify and contro! lead-based paint hazards in
eligible privately owned housing for rental or owner occupants.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Financial Analysis of the Authority

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between total assets and total liahilities. As shown in Table
1, the Authority’s total net position at September 30, 2014, was approximately 8.3 million, a 13.5
percent decrease from the September 30, 2013, balance of $3.6 million.

Table 1
Housing Aulhorily of the City of South Bend
Staternent of Net Paosition
For the year ended September 30,
{(in thousands)
Percent
2014 2013 Change Change
Current Assels 3,148 3,187 (49) -1.5%
Capital Assets 6,490 7,410 G20 -12.4%
Total Assets B R =5 e 30, BOT I (=53 9.1%
Current Liabilities 921 741 180 24,5%
Moncurrent Liabilities 428 278 150 34.0%
Totat Liabilities O 1 1019 330 az.4%
Net Investment in Capital
Assets £,480 7.370 (880} -11.9%
Restricted 1,228 1,861 (633} -34.0%
Unrestricied 571 357 214 59.9%
Total Net Position 8,289 9,588 {1.299) -13.5%
Tolal Liabilities and Nel
Position 9,538 106 607 (969} -8.1%

Current assets decreased by 1.5%, or approximately $49,000. Non-current or capital assets decreased
by $920,000 or 12.4% due to cusrent year depreciation expense exceeding current year additions.

Tota! liabitities increased in both the current and noncurrent categories. Noncurrent tiabilities increased
due to an increase in stale dated checks.

Restricted net position in comprised of HAP equity and restricted cash accounts, The net investment in
capital assets is made up of capital assets less any related debt. Unrestricted net position is the
remaining poriicn of equity not considered to restricted or an investment in capital assets.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOuTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Capital Assets

Capital assets decreased by approximately $920,000 from $7.4 million to $6.5 million, as shown in
the tabie below:

Housing Authority of the City of South Bend

Capilal Asset Analysis

9/30/2014 8/30/2013 Change g?\ra(;%né
Land and Improvements 1,325,275 1,325,275 - 0.0%
Buildings and Imprevements 60,857,666 60,700,585 297,081 0.5%
Furniture and Equipment 1,878,192 1,872,427 5,765 0.3%
Less Accumulated Depreciation {57.811,031) (56,588.,485) {1,222 536) 2,2%

Tolal Capilal Assets 0450109 L4098 732 —{919.6901

Depreciation expense was $1,222,535. Net additions totaled $302,846. There were no disposals
noted.

Capital Lease

At the end of the current year the Housing Authority had total debt outstanding of $0 related to
capital leases. The capital lease was paid off during the year,

Other Liabilities
The Authority has other liabilities in the form of stale date checks. These checks represent
outstanding checks that throughout the past years have failed to clear the bank. Checks are

removed from the outstanding list to the stale dated checks account once they are a year old.

As of September 30, 2014, total amount of stale dated checks was $392,065 and is included in long
term liabilites on the statement of net position.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2614

Changes in Net Position

Overall net position decreased by approximately $1.3 million at September 30, 2014, as indicated
befow:

Table 2
Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
Slatement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended Seplember 30,
(in thousands)

2014 2013 Change Percent noe
Revenues 17,251 19,068 .81 -8.5%
Operating Expanses 17,304 19,044 (1,740) -3.1%
Depreciation 1,223 1,338 [118) -8.7%
Total Expenses 18,527 20,383 {1.856} -9.1%
Changes in Net Position {1,276) {(1,315) 39 -3.0%
Beginning Net Position 9,589 12475 (2,886] «23,1%
Prier Period Adjustmants 24} (1.571)
Ending Net Posifion 5,289 5,589 (1.200) -13.6%

The Authority's total operating revenues, which included HUD Operating and Capital Grants, tenant
rents, interest and other income were approximately $17.3 million, compared to $19.1 million
in 2013, a 9.5 percent decrease.

Total expenses, including depreciation, decreased by approximately 9.1 percent.




HoOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Changes in expenses and their percentage change are shown below in Table 3:

Table 3
Housing Authority of the Cily of South Bend
Schedule of Operating Expenses
For ihe year ended September 30,
(in thousands}
: Parcent
2014 2013 Change Change

Adminisirative 2,390 3,331 941) -28.2%
Tenan Services 11 37 (26} -70.3%
Utilities 634 532 102 18.2%
Ordinary Maintenance 1,637 1,531 106 6.9%
Proteclive Services 184 199 (15} -7.5%
General 583 636 (43) -6.8%
Housing Assistance Payments 11,855 12,778 {823} 7.2%
Deprecialion 1,223 1,339 {118) -8.7%
Tota! Operating Expenses 18,527 20,383 (1.856) 8.1%

Significant decreases occurred in administrative expenses, housing assistance payments, and
depreciation expense. These were offset by increases in utility and ordinary maintenance
expenses.

Budgetary Controls

Budgetary control is exercised over programs through internal control methods that ensure
compliance with legal provisions incorporated in annual program budgets approved by HUD
and the Board of Commissioners. The activities of the Authority's enterprise fund are included in
the annual budgeting process. Capital project budgets contained in the Authority's Low Rent
Housing program are adopted for the length of the capital projects then annualized to strength
cost monitoring and completion of timetables.




HousING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, indiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014

Economic Factors

The Authority is primarily dependent upon HUD for the funding of operations; therefore, operating
revenues are affected more by the Federal budget than by local economic conditions. The budgets
for 2014-2015 have been approved by HUD.

Contacting the Authority’s Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all
interested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financiali information should be addressed to Executive Director,

Housing Authority of the City of South Bend, Indiana, 510 Alonzo Watson, South Bend, Indiana
46601 or call 574-235-9346.
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Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type

Seplember 30, 2014

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalenis $ 556,907
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted _ 1,450,749
Tenants receivable, net
of allowance for doubtful accounts of $71,158 9,966
Accounts receivable - HUD 896,732
Accounts receivable - other, net of allowance of $116,000 31,433
Prepaid expenses 116,505
Supplies inventory, net :
of aliowance for obsolescence of $1,749 85,665
Total current assets 3,147,957
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable capital assets 1,325,275
Depreciable capital assets, net 5,164,827
6,490,102
Tolal assets 9,638,059

Deferred Qutflows of Resources -

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 9,638,059

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:

Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities $ 532,946

Accrued compensated absences 86,641

Tenant security deposiis 182,449

Unearned revenue 1,508

Other current liabilities 117,377
Total current liabilities 920,921

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Other liabilities 427 938 -
Tofa! nencurrent liabilities 427 938
Total liabilities 1,348,859

Deferred Inflows of Resources -
Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 6,490,102

Restricted net position 1,228,045

Unrestricted net position 571,053
Total net position 8,289,200

Tolal liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 9,638,059

Seea auditor's report,
The noles to the financial stalements are an inlegral part of this staterment.
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Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Operaling revenues:
Tenant rental revenue (net)
HUD operating grants
Other revenue
Total operating revenuss

Operaling expenses:
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance
Protective services
General expanses
Housing assistance paymenlts
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenue and expense:
Interest income
Net nonoperating expense

Nei loss

Contributions - capital grants
Decrease in net position

Net position, beginning of year - restated

Net position, end of year

See audftor's report.
The notes to the financial sfalements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

1,225,681
14,691,116
1,019,263

16,836,060

2,390,392
11,134
634,054
1,637,301
184,045
592,94
11,854,897
1,222,535

18,627,288

(1,591,239)

2,885

2,885

(1,588,354)

312,173

(1,276,181)

9,565,381

$

8,289,200




Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
Scuth Bend, Indiana

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from tenants and others
Cash paid for housing assistance payments

$ 2,399,347
(12,022,345)

Cash paid for goods and services (3,087,689)
Cash paid to employees for services {1,935,569)
HUD PHA grants received 13,937,175
Net cash used by operating activities (709,081)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital grants 292,521
Acqguisition of capital assets {302,845)
Payments of principal on notes payable (40,000}
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities {50,324)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 2,885
Purchase of investments, net -
Net cash flows provided by investing activities 2,885
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (756,500}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,764,156

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net
cash used by operating activities:

Operating loss:

Adjustments to reconclie operating loss to
net cash used by operating activities:

3 2,007,656

$  (1,501,239)

Depreciation 1,222,535
Increase in tenants, accounts

receivable - government and other (749,478)
Increase in prepaid expenses (25,915)
Increase in supplies inventory {(15,534)
Increase in accrued compensated absences 1
Increase in accounts payable, accrued

liabilities and security deposits 468,238
Decrease in other current liabilities (167,448)
increase in other liabilities 145,779
Total adjustments 882,178

Net cash used by operating activities $ (709,061)

See auditor's report.
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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HOUSING AUTHOHITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority of the City of South Bend ("Authority”) is a public body corporate and politic
created under the Housing Autherity Act of the State of Indiana to provide low-rent housing for
qualified individuais in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (*HUD") and other Federal Agencies. The primary purpose of the
Authority is to provide safe, decent, sanitary and affordable housing to citizens of the City of South
Bend, Indiana.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 14, "The Financial
Reporting Entity," and GASB Statement No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units," established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and
component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under the provisions of these
statements, the Authority is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose
government that has a separate governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of
cther state or local governments,

The five-member Board of Commissioners of the Authority is appointed to two-year terms by the
Mayor of the City of South Bend, but the Authority designates its own management. The City of South
Bend is not financially accountable for the Authority as it cannot impose its will on the Authority, and
there is no potential for the Authority to provide financial benefits to, or impose financial burdens on,
the City of South Bend. Accordingly, the Authority is not a component unit of the financial reporting
entity of the City of South Bend.

The Authority has included as a blended component unit the activity for the Alonzo Watson
Foundation, Inc. {the "Foundation"), a nonprofit organization. The Foundation is shown as a blended
component unit because the Authority has financial accountability and controls its board of directors
and management,

The Foundation is a separate legal entity incorporated in the State of Indiana as a not-for-profit
organization exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code.
The purpose of the Foundation is to develop programs and services that would benefil the residents of
the Authority. Three of the five commissioners of the Authority serve on the Board of Directors of the
Foundation.

A significant portion of the funds held by the Foundation were from a bond issuance by the Authority
for a project in 2002, which resulted in recaptured savings in the amount of $553,500. The funds are
to be used to provide affordable housing to low-income families or persons within the Authority's
jurisdiction. The Foundation's total cash and investment balance as of September 30, 2014, was
$649,624.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes (o Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Description of a Public Housing Authority

Funding for public housing authorities is received from the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and fror participants in public housing programs.

Programs Administered by the Authority - The Authority administers annual contribution contracts
to provide low-income housing with primary financial support from HUD. Programs administered by the
Authority are as follows:

Public Housing Operating Subsidiary - The Authority owns, operates, and maintains 808
units of Public Housing in nine (9) developments and various scattered sites throughout the
city. The Authority does not have any properties outside of St. Joseph County orin any other
surrounding area. Under the Low Rent Housing Assistance Program, low income tenants pay
monthly rents which are determined by their need for assistance. HUD pays operating
subsidies to the housing authority to enable the authority to maintain the low-income character
of the neighborhood while providing adequate services and maintaining adequate reserves.

Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV) - the Secticn 8 Housing Assistance Payments
Program provides rental supplements to the owners of existing private housing who rent to
qualified individuals. The Authority processes all applicants for the Section 8 Housing
Assistance Payments Program, places approved applicants in housing, and pays the owner of
the private housing a monthly rental supplement. Under the conditions of an annual
contributions contract, HUD reimburses the Authority for the rental supplements and the
administrative cost of managing the program, up to a per unit fimit established in the arnual
contributions contract. As of September 30, 2014, the Authority adminisiered 1,936 tenant-
based vouchers authorized by Section 8.

Capital Fund Program {CFP) - the Authority’s capital funds are received from the Federal
Government through a formula driven computation. These funds are used to upgrade the
facilities at various developments to give the residents a decent and safe living environment.
Each year’s grant funds must be entirely obligated within two years of inception of the grant
and entirely expended within four years.

Basis of Presentation

in accordance with uniform financial reporting standards for HUD housing programs, the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("GAAP"). GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

The accounts of the Authority are organized and operated on a fund basis. Afund is an independent

fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording its assets, liabilities, net
positicn, revenues and expenses.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Motes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The Autherity accounts for its operation in one fund type, the enterprise fund that reflects the business
type activiiies of the Authority. An enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a2 manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
{b) where the governing body has decided that pericdic determination of revenue earned, expenses
incurred, and/or netincome is appropriate for capifal maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

The Housing Autherity of the City of South Bend maintains one enterprise fund which includes the
following programs; the Low Rent Housing Program, Section 8 MHousing Assistance Payments
Program — Housing Choice Voucher, Capital Fund Program, Business Activities, and the Lead Based
Paint Hazard Contrel in Privately Owned Housing Program.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. The enterprise fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are
included on the statement of net position. Enterprise fund type equity {i.e,, net total position) is
segregated into net investment in capital assets, restricted net position and unrestricted net position
componeants. Operating activities for this fund present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases
{e.g., expenses) in net total position.

The financial statements for the Authority have been presented on the accrual basis. Under this
basis, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Payments of
outstanding debt and accrued interest by HUD which have been earned by the Authority, but not yet
realized, are recorded as revenue. Operating income reported includes rental income, other tenant
charges, operating grants and other revenue for the continuing operations of the fund. Operating
expenses are the costs of providing goods and services. Other revenues and expenses are
classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

As permitied, the Authority has elected to apply only the applicable FASB Statements and

Interpretations issued before November 30, 1983 in its accounting and reporting practices for its
operations.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Noles to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies; {Continued)

Budgetary Data

The Authority is required by its HUD Annual Contributions Contracts to adopt annual budgets for the
Low-Rent Public Housing Program and the Housing Assistance Program. Capital fund budgets are
annual per HUD and are required as a condition of receiving grants. Appropriations are authorized at
the function level. Management may transfer budget authorization between functions. Budgeied
amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board.

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as
required by HUD regulations. Also, the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW
and Super NOW accounts, money accounts and certificates of deposit. Section 401{e) of the annual
contribution contract authorizes the Authority to invest in the following types of securities:

1. Obligations of the Federal Government which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
Federal Government.

2. Obligations of any agency or instrumentality of the Federal Government if the payment of
interest and principal on such obligations is fully guaranteed by the Federal Governmeni.

3. Obligations of the Federal Intermediale Credit Banks, the Federal Home Loan Banks, the
Federai National Morigage Association, the Banks for Cooperatives, and the Federai Land
Banks which mature no later than 18 months after the date of purchase.

As required by the annual contributions contract, the Authority prepares cash forecasts for each
program to determine the amount of funds available for investment and to maximize investment
earnings. During the fiscal year and at year-end, all cash was held in the form of interest bearing
accounts. The deposits and the above described investments with an criginal maturity of ninety days
or less are considered cash and cash equivalents for the Staterment of Cash Flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the Authority's financial instruments at September 30, 2C14, including cash,
invesiments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt closely approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable — HUD

Grants receivable consist of amounts due from HUD for reimbursement of expenses or costs
incurred by the Authority as of year-end.

7




HOUSING AUTHCRITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Noctes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: {Continued)

Accounts Receivable - Tenant and Bad Debts

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, Management's estimate
of the allowance is based on historical collection experience and z review of the current status of
accounts receivable. i is reasonably possible that management's estimate of the allowance will
change.

Inventcres

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method.
The costs of inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost at the date of acquisition. Assets are depreciatedona
straight-line basis over the following years:

Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 10 years
Furniture, equipment, machinery and vehicles 3-10C years

The Authority capitalizes purchases with an initizl cost that exceeds $1,000 and a useful life greater
than one year.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

in accordance with GASB No. 42, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries," prominent evenis or changes in circumstances affecting
capital assets are required to be evaluated to determine whether impairment of 2 capital asset has
occurred. Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used should be reported at the lower of
carrying value or fair value. Impairment of capital assets with physical damage generally should be
measured using the restoration cost approach, which uses the estimated cost to restare the capital
asset to identify the portion of the historical cost of the capital asset that should be written off. No
such impairment loss was incurred during the current year,

Compensated Absences

Compensated ahsences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
computed in accordance with GASB No. 16, A liability for compensated absences thatis attributable
to services aiready rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside of the control of
the Authority and its employees is accounted for in the pericd In which such services are rendered or
in which such events take place.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY GF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
Net Position

Nef investment in Capital Assets represents funds received for development and modemization of
the Authority’s dwelling units. Capital assets purchased through operaticns and grant programs are
included in this amount.

Restricted Net Pasition represents the difference between the assets and liabilities that are
constrained in use by creditors or by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governmenlts,
The Authority's restricted net position is cornprised primarily of cash and invesiments that are held for
use in the Section 8 — Housing Choice Voucher program for Housing Assistance Payments and the
cash held for the McKinney Act Refunding Agreement by Alonzo Watson Foundation, Inc.

Unrestricted Net Posifion represents the assets remaining after deducting liabilities, net investmentin
capital assets and restricted net position. It provides a basis of assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Authority.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial stalements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuils may differ
from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Income received or generated by the Authority is not subject to federal income tax, pursuant o
Internal Revenue Code Section 115. The Authority is exempt from state and local properiy taxes.
Interest paid on obligations issued by the Authority is excludable from the gross income of the
recipienis, pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
Contributions to the Authority are tax deductible contributions, pursuant to Sections 170(b)(1)A)v)
and 170(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1886, as amended.

NOTE 2: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

The Authority believes it has met its responsibilities regarding stewardship, compliance and
accountability for its fund.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes Io Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments

The Authority's deposits include deposiis with financial institutions. The carrying amount of the
Authority's deposits for cash and investments, including restricted amounts, was $2,007,656.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - |t is the Authority’s policy for deposits fo be secured by collateral
valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal Deposit insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") insurance. The Authority considers all highty liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased {o be cash and cash equivalents.

Investments - investments (if any) are secured by and up to the amount of FDIC insurance.
Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value,

Risks - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur due to the amount of
investments in a single issuer (not including investments issued or guaranteed by the US.
government, investments in a mutual fund, or external investment pools).

Credit risk of investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not meet its obligations.
This credit risk is measured by the credit quality rating of investments in debt securities, as described
by a national statistical rating organization such as Standard & Poor's (S&P). The Authority’s policy
provides thalinvestments in corporate bonds and other fixed income securities must have a rating of
A or better.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair vaiue of an
investment. The Authority's policy is to select investments of varied maturities to mitigate this risk.

The following charts show the Authority's exposure to these risks:

Balance
Deposlited with
Carrying the Financial FDIC
Amount Institution Insurance
Bank deposits held $ 1,286,339 $ 1,308,664 $ 500,000
Money market funds and savings 721,317 721,372 250,000
Total § 2,007,656 $ 2,030,036 $ 750,000

The Authority is required by HUD to obtain pledged securities from the banks for all amounts above
the FDIC insured amounts.
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HousINng AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 20714

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Cash and investments are reperted on the statement of net assets as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ B56,907
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,450,749
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,007,856

Invesiments - restricted

Total g 2.007,656

Restricted cash and investments as of September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Tenant security deposits $ 184,497
Section 8 restricted cash 632,838
Alonzo Watson Foundation 631,906
Milton grant restricted cash 1,508

Total $ 1,450,749

Regulations of HUD require that security deposits be reported as restricted assets of the Authority.

NOTE 4: Inter-program Amounts

At September 30, 2014, inter-program receivables and payables consisted of the following:

Due from Due to
Program:
coce § 1,356,810 $ 942,841
Public Housing low rent program 1,618,545 675,704
Lead-based paint program 200 644,426
Section 8 — Housing Choice Voucher - 694,856
Component Unit 17,728

$ 2,975,555 $ 2975555

These inter-program receivables and payables have been eliminated on the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

Septemnber 30, 2014

NOTE 5: Other Recejvables

Other receivables consist of the following:

Low-rent HCV Fraud
Puplic Housing Receivable Total
Tenant receivables - Repayment Agreements  $ 18,822 $ 128611 $ 147,433
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (116,000} (116,000)

§ 18,822 & 12611 $ 31,433

NQTE 6; Accounts Receivable - HUD

Amounts due from the U,S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as of September 30,
2014 are composed of the following:

Amounts due for the Lead-based Paint Program $ 283,041
Amount due for Public Housing operating subsidy 613,641
$ 896,732

NOTE 7: Capital Assets

The capital assets (at cost) of the Housing Authority of the City of South Bend at September 30, 2014
consistad of the following:

Balance at Balance al
Seplember 30, Seplember 30,
2013 Addilions Deletions Transfers 2014
Nongdepreciable capilal assets:
Land $ 1,325,275 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,325,275
Conslruciion in progress - 291,751 - (291,751) -
1325275 291,751 - (291,751) _ 1325275
Depreciable capital assels: T
Buildings and improvements 60,700,585 11,085 - 285,586 60,097,666
Furniture, equipment, vehicles 1,872,427 - - 5,765 1,978,192
62,673,012 11,095 - 291,751 62,975,850
Accumulaled Depreciation:
Buiidings and improvemenis (56,380,827) {1,181,462) - (57.562,289)

Furniiure, equipment, vehicles (207,668) {41,073} {1) - (248,742)

({56,588,495) (1,222,535} {1 - {57.811,031)
Totat Capital Assets, net 3 7,409,782 $ (919.688) & {1y & . 5 6,480,102
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HoOuUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NMOTE 8: Retirement Plan

The Authority maintains the Housing Authority of the City of South Bend, Indiana Employees
Retirement Plan (the “Plan"), which is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by Fidelity
Investments. The plan was amended at the end of February 2014 to become a profit sharing plan
providing for discretionary employer contributions to be determined annually by the Authority. The
Plan covers all permanent fuli-time employees who worked for at least six months and at least 20
hours weekly.

Participants’ benefits in the Authority matching contributions are fully vested after five years of
participation. All employees are 100 percent vested when they reach their 55™ birthday, regardiess of
their years of service. The Plan's assets are accumulated in pooled investments maintained by
Fidelity Investments.

The Authority made all the required contributions to the Plan through February 2014 and has made
no discretionary contributions subsecuent to that date.

Defined contribution expense for the year ended September 3C, 2014, totaled $118,068. Covered
payroll, prior to the plan amendment, was approximately $995,000.

NOTE 9. Noncurrent Liabilities

For the year ended September 30, 2014, the change in noncurrent liabilities is as follows:

Septernber 30, 2013 Seplember 30, 2014
Cboion_poionAdates  paymews ST SR
Accrued compensated
absences § - 86,840 8 1 § - 5 - § 86,641
Other liabilities 278,159 - 149,779 427,938
Capital lease payable - 40,000 - (40,060)
% 278,159 § 125,640 § 149,780 % (40,000} $ 427,998 $ 96,643

Other liabilities as of September 3C, 2014 are comprised of $392,065 of stale dated checks and the
HCV FSS escrow liability of $35,873.

The stale dated checks represent outstanding checks that throughout the past years faited to clear
the bank. Checks are removed from the outstanding list to the stale dated checks account once they
are a year old, Once the status of the check is determined, either an adjusting entry is made to void
the check or, if the check was issued and not cashed, per Indiana law, there needs to be attempts to
locate the payee {o pay them the amount owed. If the payee cannot be located and paid, then the
money needs to be remitted to the State of Indiana as unclaimed property.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

Seplember 30, 2014

NOTE 10: Capital Lease

In July 2010, the Authority entered into a capital lease for the purchase of ceriain telephone and other
eguipment to be used in the operations of the Authority, The lease had a term of five years and was
capitalized using aninterest rate of 13.6% per year. During the year ended September 30, 2014, the
Authority paid off the remaining amount due on the capital lease of $40,000. Therefore, the total
amount due at September 30, 2014 is $0.

NOTE 11: Schedule of Changes in Net Position:

Net Investrnent in Restricted Unrestricted
Capilal Assels Net Position Net Position Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 7369,792 § 1,860,813 § 356,865 § 9,587,470
Adjusiments to resiate
beginning balance - {51,500) 29,411 (22,089)
Balance, beginning of year - restated 7,369,792 1,809,313 386,276 " 9,565,381
Decrease in net position - - (1,276,181) (1,278,181}
Changes in net investment in capitat assels (879,630) - 879,690 -
Changes in restricted net position - {581,268) 581,268 -
Balance, end of year % 6,490,102 $ 1,228,045 % 571,033 $ 8,283,200

Adjustments totaling $22,089 were made to the beginning balances to correct various balance sheet
accounts as of September 30, 2013,

NOTE 12; Risk Management

The Authority carries commercial insurance against all risks of loss, including property and general
liability, auto, worker's comp, fidelity and pubiic officials’ liability insurance. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.

NOTE 13: Eccnomic Dependency

The Authority received approximately 87% of its revenues from HUD during the fiscal year. If the
amount of revenues received from HUD falls below critical levels, the Authority's operating results

could be adversely affected.

NOTE 14: Commitments and Contingencies

Examinations - The Authority is subject to possible examinations made by Federal regulators who
determine compliance with terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing grants given to the

Authority in the current and prior years.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

NOTE 14: Commiiments and Contingencies (Continued)

In August of 2015 the U.S, Depariment of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Office of
Inspector General (OIG) completed an audit of the Authority's Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)
program and issued a draft report wherein it recommended that the Authority (1) reimburse the HCV
program nearly $80,000 from non-Federal funds for ineligible housing assistance and utility
allowance payments, (2} support or reimburse the HCV program more than $432,000 from non-
Federal funds for unsupported payments, {3) reimburse HUD more than $24,000 for unearned Family
Self-Sufficiency grant funds, and (4) implement adequate controls to address the findings cited in the
draft audit report. The Authority is working ciosely with HUD and with the OIG to resolve the issues
raised in the draft audit report in the hopes that little, if any, of the above amounts will actually need to
be repaid. The uitimate outcome of this OIG audit is unknown as of this financial statement audit,
and, as such, no Habilities have been accrued for any potential amounts to be repaid to HUD. The
Authority does not expect the final resolution of the OIG audit to materially affect the financial
statements.

Troubled Status — As a resuit of significant financial and compliance issues, HUD has placed the
agency into "froubled” status. HUD more closely monitors an authority in troubled status and places
significant oversight on the authority's ability to receive federal grant funds and on its ability to make
disbursements. HUD has the ultimate right to take over operations of the Authority or to require
changes in managemeni of the Authority. Currently, the Authority is working very closely with HUD
under a recovery plan to implement changes to improve its finances and operations in order to get
out of troubled status.

Commitments - The Authority has, under its normal operations, entered into commitments for the
purchase of maintenance, cleaning and other services. Such commitments are monthly or annual.
The Authority's funding contracts require the fuifiiment of certain conditions as set forth in the
agreements. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors.
Management believes the Authority has substantially complied with the provisions of its coniracts
and. Accordingly, no additional amounts are expected to be returned for noncompliance.

Claims and Judgments - The Authority is the defendant in various lawsuits filed against the
Authority. Although the Authority will vigorously defend itseif in any legal and administrative
proceeding, the outcome of any proceeding arising out of the conduct of the Authority's business,
including litigation with tenants, employment-related lawsuits, contractual disputes, class actions,
purported class actions and actions brought by governmental authorities, cannot be predicted with
certainty. The jikelihood that the Authority will sustain a material loss in excess of amounts covered
by insurance, and the amount of any such loss, cannot be estimated at this time, and therefore, no
ligkility for such potentiai loss has been accrued.

NOTE 15: Subsequent Events

Management for the Authority has evaluated subsequent events after September 30, 2014, anc
through August 15, 2016, the date which the financial statements were available fo be issued, andno
events were identified that would require recognition or disclosure within these financial statements,
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Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Statement and Certification of Actual Capital Fund Program Costs
September 30, 2014

Annual Contributions Contract C977

1. The capital fund program costs of IN 5501 (2010) are as follows:

Funds approved $ 1,647,836
Funds expended 1,547,836
Excess of funds approved $ -
Funds advanced % 1,647,836
Funds expended 1,647,836
Excess of funds advanced $ -

2. Costs incurred during the current audit period totaled $16,305.

3. All costs have been paid and all related liabilities should be discharged
through payment.

4, The Authority could not provide the Actual Modernization Cost Certificate submitted to HUD to
determine whether it would be in agreement with the above amounts.

See audhtor's report.
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Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Statement of Capital Fund Program Costs - Uncompleted
September 30, 2014

Annual Contributiens Contract C877

1. The capital fund program costs of IN 5501 (2012} are as follows:

Funds approved $ 1,104,112
Funds expended 834,747
Excess of funds approved $ 269,365
Funds advanced % 834,747
Funds expended 834,747
Excess of funds advanced $ -

2. Costs incurrad during the current audit period totaled $518,480.

See auditor's report,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED iN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City
of South Bend (the "Authority™), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated August 15, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

tn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal
control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions onthe financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control,

QOur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified, However, as described in the accempanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs, we
identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatemeants on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstaternent of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001 to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomgpliance or other maiters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Housing Authority of the City of South Bend’s Response to Findings

The Housing Authority of the City of South Bend's response to the findings identified in our auditis described
in the accompanying corrective action plan. The Housing Authority of the City of South Bend's response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate lefter dated
August 15, 2016.

Furpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

4 1%,;44

Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
August 15, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the City of Scuth Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audifed the Housing Authority of the City of South Bend's {the "Authority”} compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority's major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2014, The Authority's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’'s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicabie to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authorily's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of campliance reguirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Tnose standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federai program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We beliave that our audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinicn on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audil does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Low-Rent Housing Program

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Housing Authority of the
City of South Bend did not comply with requirements regarding CFDA 14.850 Low-Rent Housing Program as
described in finding numbers 2014-002 for reporting, 2014-003 for eligibility, 2014-004, 2014-010, 2014-011,
and 2014-012 for special tests and provisions and 2014-014 for activities allowed or unallowed. Compliance
with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Housing Authority of the City of South Bend 1o
comply with the requirements applicable to that program.

30




Qualified Opinion on Low-Rent Housing Program

In our cpinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
Authority, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that

couid have a direct and material effect on the Low-Rent Housing Program for the year ended September 30,
2014,

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Housing Choice Voucher Program

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Housing Authority of the
City of South Bend did not comply with requirements regarding CFDA 14.871 Housing Cheice Voucher
Program as described in finding numbers 2014-002, 2014-008 and 2014-013 for reporting, 2014-005 for
eligibility, and 2014-006 and 2014-007 for special tests and provisions. Compliance with such requirements
is necessary, in our opinion, for Housing Authority of the City of South Bend to comply with the requirements
applicabie to that program.

Qualified Opinion on Housing Choice Voucher Program

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualifisd Opinion paragraph, the
Authority, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on the Housing Choice Voucher Program for the year ended
September 30, 2014,

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Capital Fund Program

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs, the Housing Authority of the
City of South Bend did not comply with requirements regarding CFDA 14.872 Capital Fund Program as
described in finding numbers 2014-002 for reporting and 2014-009 for the Davis-Bacon Act, Comptiance with
such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Housing Authority of the City of South Bend to comply
with the requirements applicable to that program.

Qualitied Opinion on Capital Fund Program

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
Authority, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requiremerts referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on the Capital Fund Program for the year ended September 30, 2014,
Other Matters

The Authority's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audil is descriped in the

accompanying corrective action plan. The Authority's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
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Report on Internal Contrel Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal contrel over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program -and to test and report on internal contre! over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal controf over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal contrel over compliance was far the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknasses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified cerfain
deficiencies in internal control aver compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of periorming their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
tederal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reascnable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wili not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis, We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accempanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-002,
2014-003, 2014-004, 2014-005, 2014-0086, 2014-007, 2014-008, 2014-009, 2014-010, 2014-011, 2014-012,
2014-013 and 2014-014 o be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness it internal control over compliance, yetimportant enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

The purpose of this report on internal contrel over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal contro) over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/éaxé\, M 41!’1;..4/;44.

Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
August 15, 20186
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Sfalements
Type of report issued on the financial statements:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencles identified not considered

to be material weaknesses?

Noncomptiance materlal to the financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal controls over major program:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Unmodified

Yes
None Reported

No

Yes

None Reported

Type of report issued on the compliance for major program: Qualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reporied
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? Yes
{dentification of major program: 14.871 Section 8 — Housing Choice Voucher
14.850 Low-Rent Housing Program
14.872 Capital Fund Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $450,089
Did the Authorily qualify as a low-risk auditee? No
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

Section Il -  Financial Statement Findings:

The findings related to this area for the year ended September 30, 2014 are as follows.

2014-001 Inadequate Controls Over Financial Reporting

Material Weakness in internal Control

Candition: The Authority did not have adequate controls over the period-end financial reporting process
to detect material misstatements. The Authority did not properly record entries related to HUD
raceivables, allowance for uncoliectible fraud receivables, prepaid insurance, accounts payable,
accrued payroll, interprogram recelvables and payables, and net position.

Criteria: The Authority should have the necessary controls aver the period-end financial reporting
process to detect material misstatements without Auditor detection.

Questioned Cost: None

Effect: As a result of the audit, the Authority recorded additional receivables from HUD of $432,528,
$33,385 additional receivables from tenants, recorded $116,000 for an allowance for uncollectible for
fraud receivables, adjusted prepaid insurance by $112,871, adjusted capital assets by $35,534,
adjusted accounts payable by $175,956, adjusted accrued payroll by $55,184, adjusted non-current
liabilities by $152,342, adjusted grant revenues by $182,838 and adjusted various other asset, liability,
revenue and expense accounts,

Cause: The Authority did not have the necessary controls over the period-end financial reporting
process io detect material misstatements.

Auditor's Recommendation: The Authority shouid establish controls to ensure that appropriate year-end
adjustments are recorded so that the financial statements are fairly presented.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

Section Il - Federal Awards:

The findings related to this area for the year ended September 30, 2014 are as follows.

2014-002 Reporting — FDS Late Submission

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14,871
Capital Fund Program CFDA 14,872

Material Weakness in Internal Control

Material Nencompliance

Condition: The Authaority failed to submit the unaudited and audited Financial Data Schedule ("FDS")
within the time frames specified by HUD. The Autherity submitted the unaudited REAC on October
23, 2015 (and it was due by November 30, 2014). In addition, the audited submission was dus by
June 30" and is also late.

Criteria: The Real Estate Assessment Center ("REAC") requires the submission of unaudited and
audited FDS information for September 30 fiscal year end Public Housing Authorities ("PHAs"} by
November 30 and June 30, respectively.

Effect: The Authority did not submit an acceptable unaudited and audited FDS in a timely manner
and, therefore, was noncompliant with this reporting requirement.

Cause: The Authority experienced significant turnover among key personnel in the Finance
Department during the fiscal year and did not have the necessary resources and control procedures
in place to properly prepare the financial information required for the submission of an acceptable
unaudited and audited FDS within the reguired time frames.

Recommendation: The Authority should make every effort to file its REAC submission timely.

2014-003 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: Forty tenant files were selected for testing, but testing was suspended after testing 20 files
as a result of the following instances of noncompliance noted in the 20 files tested:.

« 12 instances of not using the correct utility allowance schedule. The Board approved
changes to the utility allowances but the changes were not implemented by the Authority.
« 5 instances of not calculating the tenant's annual income properly based on the supporting
documentation in the file.
« 3instances of the required annual recertification not being done timely —in allthree cases the
annual recertificatiocns were done one month iate.
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HousiNG AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosis

September 30, 2014

2014-003 Eligibility — Tenant Files {Continued)

3 instances of the EIV report not being obtained as part of the annual recertification
performed.

1 instance of assets not being listed on the 50058 and income related thereto not being
calculated and included as part of the annual income of the tenant.

1 instance of not obtaining documentation to verify full-time student status of child age 18 or
clder, ‘

1 instance of a lack of a signed tenant cerfification in the file certifying as to accuracy of
information provided on the 50058,

Criteria; HUD regulations require that the Authority perform certain prescribed verification procedures
and obtain the required documentation to assure that tenants qualify for low income housing and that
amounts submitted to HUD for tenant assistance are calculated according to HUD rules.

Questioned Costs: None,

Effect: The Authority is nct in compliance with applicable HUD regulations.

Cause: The Authority had turnover in staff and staff may need more training. In addition, review
procedures should be used to reduce errors.

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase training to

employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for verification
of tenant information and calculation of tenant rents.

2014-004 Special Tests and Provisions ~ Waiting List and New Admissicns

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 40 applicants on the current waiting list and 9 new admissions for the year, the
foliowing instances of noncomptiance were noted:

The Board approved preference for elderly, near-elderly, disabled or working families were
not being used for 2, 3, 4 or 5 bedroom units. The staff of the Authority misunderstood the
preference and were only applying it to applicants on the one bedroom waliting list.

The Authority lacks the proper controls and procedures to track the aging of an applicant to
determine when the applicant may qualify for the near-elderly preference.

One applicant's original application could not be located ta verify data on the current waiting
list.

Three instances existed where the date of the original application did not agree with the
application date shown on the current waiting list.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-004 Special Tests and Provisions — Waiting List and New Admissions (Continued})

« One instance where the applicant was on the one bedroom waiting list when updated
information in the application file indicated a change in family size but the applicant had not
been placed on the larger bedroom waiting list.

» Twoinstances where the criminal background checks were performed more than 20 months
and 32 months before admission.

« Five instances where it appears new tenants were admitled ahead of other applicants with
older dates of application and/or preference.

Criteria: The Authority is required to maintain a waiting list and admit tenants based on the waiting list
in accordance with HUD requirements and the Authority's policies as stated in the Admissions and
Continued Qccupancy Policy.

Questioned Cosis: None.

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with its waiting list policies.
Cause: The Authority did not have adequate internal controls in place over waiting lists.

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase fraining lo
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for waiting lists
and new admissions including preferences. In addition, the Authority shouid implement a review
procedure to make sure that all tenants are admitted in the proper order, and that all eligibie
applicants are included on the waiting list.

2014-005 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: Forty tenant files were selected for testing, but testing was suspended after testing 20 files
as a result of the following instances of noncompliance noted in the 20 files tested:

+ All twenty files did not include the original signed applications {though current applications
were in the files).

7 instances in which Form 214 was not included in the file.

10 instance where the file did not include the signed lease agreement.

8 instance where the file did not include the signed HAP agreement.

6 instances where the lead based paint notice was not included in the file.

2 instances of not calculating the tenant's annual income properly based on the supporting
documentation in the file.

2 instances of failed inspections where the re-inspection was not performed within 30 days.
1 instance of the EIV report documentation not inciuded in the file.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-005 Eligibility — Tenant Files (Continued)

Criteria: 24 CFR 882.516 requires internal controls to be in place to ensure compliance with HUD
requirements, as well as complete and accurate tenant files. In addition, the Authority’s administrative

plan also requires following proper procedures for determination of HAP and documentation in the
tenant files.

Questioned Costs: Nore.

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with all of the HUD reguirements regarding eligibility and
tenant recertifications, which could resultin incorrect total tenant payments for rent and HAP payment
1o tandlords.

Cause: The Authority had turnover in staff and staff may need more training. In addition, review
procedures should be used 1o reduce errors.

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase training to
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for verification
of tenant information and calculation of tenant rents.

2014-006 Special Tests and Provisions — Waiting List and New Admissions

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Marerial Weakness in Internal Conirol
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 25 applicants on the current waiting list and 7 new admissions for the year, the
following instances of noncompliance were noted.

« 8 instances where the date and time on the waiting list did not agree to the original
application. All of these instances relate to 2009 where in an attempt to implement the
Authority's preference for tenants resicing in South Bend, the Authority personnel placed a
secondary date and time stamp on the application of all applicants who at the time were not
residents of South Bend. Not using the original apptication date will cause all such applicants
to be considered in the wrong crder when and if their address should change to being a
resident of South Bend.

« 3 instances where the original application was not in the file, thus the date and time on the
waiting list could not be verified.

e 1 instance where the determination of rent reasonableness was not documented in the file
orior to admission.

Criteria: The Authority is required to maintain a waiting list and admit tenants based on the waiting
list, sorted in order by preferences and date and time, in accordance with HUD requirements and the
Authority’s policies as stated in the Section 8 Administrative Plan.

Questioned Costs: Nene.
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HoUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, [ndiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-006 Special Tests and Provisions — Waiting List and New Admissions (Continued)

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with its waiting fist policies.
Cause: The Authority did not have adequate internal controls in place over waiting lists,

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase- training to
employees and reviewers {o insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for waiting lists
and new admissions. in addition, the Authority should implement a review procedure to make sure
that all tenants are admitted in the praper order, and that all eligible applicants are included on the
waiting list.

2014-007 Special Tests and Provisions - Housing Quality Standard (HQS) Faifed Inspections

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Controf
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 25 failed HQS inspections the following instances of noncompliance were noted:

« 8 instances where the original failed inspection report was not in the file, so it was not
possible to evaluate whether any of the required repairs would be an immediate hazard to
health and safety (a 24 hour repair requirement).

« 5instances where the required repairs were not made in a timely manner and the Authority
failed to timely abate HAP payments due to the landlord.

« 1instance where the inspection revealed that there was exposed wiring on the stave, butthis
was not identified by the Authority as a repair that would be an immediate hazard to health
and safety that would require a 24 hour repalir.

Criteria: HUD reguiations require that units leased to a family are inspected at least annually to
determine if the unit meets Housing Quality Standards (HQS). In addition, inspections must be
documented on a unit inspection report. For units that fail inspections, any life threatening
deficiencies must be corrected within 24 hours and all other deficiencies must be corrected within 30
calendar days or within a specified PHA-approved extension. If the deficiency is not correcled, the
HAP payment must be abated no later than the first of the following month.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect: The Authority is not in compiiance with applicable HUD regulations.

Cause: Significant turnover and lack of proper oversight contributed to the errors noted. The:
Authority did not have adequate internal controls in place over failed inspections.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-007 Special Tests and Provisions - Housing Quality Standard (HQS) Failed Inspections
{Continued)

Recommendation: The Authority should make sure that faifed HQS inspections are done within the

required time frame or are properly abated. If the Authority doesn't do the inspection within the

required time frame and doesn't abate the HAP payment, the Authority should document the reason

in order to determineg if it was reasonable. Also, the Authority should assure that all critical repairs for
.- life threatening deficiencies are compieted within 24 hours.

2014-008 Reporting - SEMAP

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: During our testing of the Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP), we
noted that the Authority failed to provide documentation to support its assessment of the following
SEMAP Indicators:

¢ Indicator 2 — Reasonable Rent
+ Indicator 3 - Determination of Adjusted Income
» Indicator 6 - HQS Enforcement

Criteria: According to 24 CFR 885.1, the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAF) is
designed to assess whether the Section 8 tenant-based assistance programs operate to help eligible
famities afford decent rental units at the correct subsidy cost. SEMARP provides procedures for HUD
to identify PHA management capabilities and deficiencies in order to target monitoring and program
assistance more effectively.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect: The Authority is notin compliance with applicable HUD regulations. The Authority’s score for
SEMAP may change based on the lack of documentation.

Cause: The Authority did not properly perform, documentand report the required results for SEMAP.

Recommendation: The Authority needs to correctly perform and document the SEMAP review and
report accurately according to the samples iested,
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HousiNG AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-009 Davis-Bacon Act

Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority did not provide documentation to show that it complied with the Davis-Bacon
act related to reviewing certified payrolls to make sure the payrolls are in excess of the prevailing

wage rates in the area and did not provide documentation that employee interviews were being
conducted.

Criteria: Projects funded with Capital Funds that are developed in accordance with 24 CFR part 341
— Public Housing Development and/or modernized in accordance with 24 CFR part 968 — Public
Housing Modernization that contain only public housing units and mixed-finance projects developed
in accordance 24 CFR part 941 subpart F — Public/Private Partnerships for the Mixed-Finance
Development of Public Housing are subject ta the Davis-Bacon Act ("Act™). The Authority is required
by the Act to obtain certified payrolls from all contractors and sub-contractors working on jobs funded
with federal monies. The Authority should make sure that all wage amournis being paid are in excess
of the prevailing wage rates set for this geographic area. Additionally the Authority should go to the
job site periodically and select construction workers such as laborers & mechanics at the job-site to
interview. The information obtained during these interviews should be tracked to the certified payrolls
submitted by the contractors and sub-contractors prior to the contractor invoice for this period being
paid.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect; The Authority is not in compliance with applicable Davis-Bacon Act regulations.
Cause: The Authority did not provide documentation that it was complying with the Davis-Bacon Act.

Recommendation: The Authority needs to properly document its compliance with the Davis-Bacon
Act for all construction related awards.
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HoOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-010 Special Tests and Provisions — Declarations of Trust

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Contro}
Material Noncompfiance

Condition: The Authority could not locate the Declarations of Trust (DOT) for its public housing

properties.

Criteria: A current Declaration of Trust {DOT), in a form acceptable to HUD, must be recorded
against all public housing property owned by PHAs that bas been acquired, developed, maintained,
or assisted with funds from the US Housing Act of 1937. A DOT is a legal instrument that grants HUD
an interest in public housing propenrty. It provides pubtic notice that the property must be operated in
accordance with all Federal public housing requitements, including the reguirement notto convey or
otherwise encumber the property unless expressly authorized by federal law andfor HUD, In PiH
Notice 2008-28 (HA), PHAs were asked to ensure that current (unexpired) DOTs were recorded
against all of their public housing property within 12 months of the date of PHA's next fiscal year

beginning with PHAs with fiscal years commencing on October 1, 2008.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect: The Authority is notin compliance with applicable HUD regulations. HUD could be harmed if

a public housing property is not listed on the declaration of trust instrument,

Cause: The Authority had turnover in staff and could not locate these documents.

Recommendation: The Authority should locate the declarations of trust for all public housing

properties and have them available for review.

2014-011 Special Tests and Provisions - Bank Depository Agreements

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority could not locate the bank Depository Agresments for its bank accounts, nor
could it provide documentation from one bank for pledged securities for amounts in excess of FDIC

insurance amounts.

Criteria; PHAs are required ‘o enter into depository agreements with their financial institution using
the HUD-51998 (OMB No. 2577-0270) or a form required by HUD in the ACC. The agreements serve
as safe guards for Federal funds and provide third-party rights to HUD (Section € of the ACC).

Questioned Costs: None.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-011 Special Tests and Provisions — Bank Depository Agreements (Continued)

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with applicabie HUD regulations.
Cause: The Authority had turnover in staff and could not locate these documents.

Recommendationi: The Authority should either locate all the bank depository agreements or execute
new ones for all of its bank accounts; and the Authority should require a!l banks to provide periodic

documentation that pledged securities are provided for amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage,

2014-012 Special Tests and Provisions — Project Based Budgeting

Public and Indian Housing Program - CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority did not timely adopt budgets nor did it periodicaily review budget to actual
cemparisons and address significant variances among budget to actual data.

Criteria: PHAs implementing asset management shall develop and maintain a system of budgeting
and accounting for each project in a manner that allows for analysis of actual revenues and expenses
associated with each property (24 CFR section 980.280(a)). Prior to the beginning of its fiscal year, a
PHA is required to prepare an operating budget.

Questioned Cosis: None.

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with applicable HUD regulations. Failure to budget imely
and failure to track budget to actual amounts impairs the Authority's ability to make effective financial
decisions at the project level.

Cause: The Authority had turnover in staff and was focused on other issues related to its troubled
status.

Recommendation: The Authority should prepare project based budgets timely and should track
budget to actuai amounts and explain significant variances timely.

2014-013 Reporting - FSS Escrows

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Malerial Noncompliance

Condition; The Authority was unable to provide an accounting showing the FSS escrow balance
applicable to each FS88 family.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2014

2014-013 Reporting - FSS Escrows (Continued)

Criteria: According to 24 CFR 984.305(a) (2}, the Authority is required to maintain a subsidiary ledger
showing the FSS account balance applicable to each participating FSS family.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect; The Authority is notin compliance with the federal regulations regarding accounting for FES
account balances.

Cause: The Authority has experienced a great deal of employae turnover, and as a result was not
able to produce the proper accounting records to support the FSS escrow balances.

Recommendation: The Authority needs to create the accounting records to properly support the FES
escrow balances for each participating family and establish controls to make sure this accounting is
maintained and reconciled on a regular basis.

2014-014 Activities Allowed or Unallowed — Interprogram Activity

Public and tndian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Coritrol
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority has loaned mcnies from the Public and Indian Housing Program to the
COCC. As of Septembesr 30, 2014 these loans totaled $342,841.

Criteria; Per HUD regulations and the line definition guide issued by HUD for the Financial Data
Schedule, funds in the AMP can only be transferred to other AMPs or to the COCC for a fee for
service, an EPC agreement for a percentage of the energy savings, or other pre-approved HUD
exceptions. The Authority is cautioned that funds are normally not fungible between different federal
programs regardless of the nature of the transfer or receivable. Inappropriate use of funds, even a
ternporary loan, are ineligible costs resulting in non-compliance. The AMPs, under current laws,
cannot foan the COCC any funds.

Questioned Cosis: None.

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with applicable HUD regulations regarding eligible use of
federal funds.

Cause: The COCC borrowed these funds to advance to the Section 8 HCV Program, which has
experienced operating losses in excess of its available funds.

Recommendation: The Authority should develop a plan based on budgeting and monitoring of
COCC and HCV expenses to have the ability to reimburse funds to the Public and Indian Housing
Program.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, indiana

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

September 30, 2014

The prior audit report for the year ended September 30, 2013 contained the following findings:

2013-1

2013-2

2013-3

Late FDS Submissions

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Housing Voucher Program —- CFDA Number 14.871
Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872

Type of Finding: internal Control — Material Weakness, Compliance — Reporting

Statement of Cendition The Authority failed to submit the unaudited and audited Financial Data
Schedule ("FD8") within the time frames specified by HUD.

Recommendation The Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor
the performance of the Finance Department including the responsibility for financial reporting in
accordance with REAC and HUD requirsments.

Current Status The finding was not corrected and will be repeated. See current year finding
2014-002.

Low-Rent Public Housing Tenant Lease Files
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFOA 14.850
Type of Finding: Internal Control — Significant Deficiency, Compliance — Eligibility

Statement of Condition Forty (4C) tenant lease files were tested for compliance with requirements
of the program, Within the sample, one (1) lease file was unable to be located.

Recommendation The Authority should adopt procedures to ensure tenant lease files are
retained for an adequate period of time after the tenant vacates the premises.

Current Status The finding was corrected,

Housing Cheice Voucher Program Tenant Lease Files

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Type of Finding: Internal Contral — Significant Deficiency, Compliance ~ Eligibility

Statement.of Condition Forty (40) tenant lease files were tested for compliance with requirements
of the program. Within the sample, five {6) tenants did not have a HAP contract with the owner
and one (1) tenant was observed to have had no inspection, no HAP contract with the owner and
an incorrectly calculated utility allowance.

Recommendation The Authority should adopt procedures fo ensure all required documentation
and materials are included in tenant files and that all calculations are accurate.

Current Status The finding was not corrected and will be repeated. See current year finding
2014-006.
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HoOUsING AUTHORITY OF THE CTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

September 30, 2014

2013-4

2013-5

2013-6

Low-Rent Pubfic Housing and Capital Fund Program Special Tests and Provisions
Pubtic and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850

Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872

Type of Finding: tnternal Control — Material Weakness, Compliance — Special Tests

Statement of Condition The Authority did rot demonsirate appropriate budgetary and monitoring
control over financial accounting and reporting. Budgetary oversight is a critical component of
internal control over financial reporting, and the Authority did not demonstrate such oversightor
maonitoring of budget-to-actual financial analysis. Operating budgets should include all data
needed to report and monitor the activities to be reported in the project-based FDS, as well as
administrative costs, in accordance with GAAP. The Authority failed to have such a budgetary
and financial monitoring system in place.

Recommendation Budgetary oversight is a critical internal control over financial reporting. The
Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor performance, including
the responsibility for budgetary analysis and the use of budgets for monitoring financial reporting.

Current Status The finding was cleared for the Capital Fund Program, but not for the Public and
Indian Housing Program. See current year finding 2014-012.

Operating Fund Program Activities Allowed or Unallowed
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Type of Finding: Internal Control - Significant Deficiency, Compliance — Activities Allowed

Statement of Condition The Authority was unable to provide docurmentation for certain Qperating
Fund Program expenditures.

Recommendation The Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor
performance, including the responsibility for maintaining proper supporting docurnentation for all
financial reporting activities.

Current Status The finding was cleared.

Housing Choice Voucher Program Special Tests and Provisions
Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Type of Finding: Internal Control — Significant Deficiency, Compliance — Special Tests

Statement of Condition Section 8 Management Assessment Program ('SEMAP")} score was rated
as troubled.

Recommendation The Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor
performance, including the responsibility for financial reporting and the related submission ofthe
accurately completed SEMAP as required and within the required time frame.

Current Status The finding was cleared.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

September 30, 2014

2013-7

2013-8

2013-9

Housing Choice Voucher Program Delinguent Tenants

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Type of Finding: Internal Control — Significant Deficiency, Compliance ~ Special Tests

Statement of Condition The Authority has a receivable balance due from ninety-one (91) tenants
whe had been determined to have previousty underreported income. Currently, these tenants are
technically considered to be in a delinquent status, although they have continued to be recertified.

Recommendation The Authority should adopt procedures to ensure 'that all delinquent tenant
rents are pursued, including those resuiting from previously underreported income, and the
Authority should consider the appropriateness of recertifying these tenants.

Current Status The finding was cleared.,

Capital Fund Program Activities Allowed or Unallowed

Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872
Type of Finding: internal Control — Significant Peficiency, Compliance — Activities Allowed

Statement of Condition The Authority was unable to provide documentation for certain Capital

Fund Program expenditures, which would allow for verification of the absence of questioned
costs.

Recommendation The Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor
performance, including the responsibility for maintaining proper supporting documentation for all
financial reperting activities.

Current Status The finding was cleared.

Material Adjustments Made 1o Pricr Periods

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871

Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872

Type of Finding: internal Contro! — Material Weakness, Compliance ~ Reporting

Statement of Condition Management has determined that material adjustments and
reclassifications were required to be made by the Finance Department, such that the beginning
balances of the previously audited financial statements and FDS would be presented fairly in
accordance with GAAP.

Recommendation The Authority should reassess its personnel needs and more closely monitor
the performance of the Finance Department including the responsibility for financial reporting in
accardance with all material GAAP requirements,

Current Status The finding was not corrected and will be repeated. See current year finding
2014-001.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, indiana

Corrective Aclion Plan

September 30, 2014

The following is the corrective action planned by the Authority regarding the current findings:

Finding
No.

2044-001 lnadequate Controls Over Financial Reporting
Material Weakness in Internal Conirol

Condition: The Authority did not have adequate controls over the period-end financial reporting process
to detect material misstatements. The Authority did not properly record entries refated to HUD
receivables, allowance for uncoliectible fraud receivables, prepaid insurance, accounis payable,
accrued payroll, interprogram receivables and payables, and net position.

Auditor's Recommendation: The Authority should establish controls to ensure that appropriate year-end
adjusiments are recorded so that the financial statements are fairly presented.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. We are in the process of establishing controis to
ensure that appropriate year-end adjustments are recorded so that financial statements are fairly
presented.

2014-002 Reporting — FDS L ate Submission
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Capital Fund Program CFDA 14.872
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliiance

Condition: The Authority failed to submit the unaudited and audited Financial Data Schedule ("FDS")
within the time frames specified by HUD. The Authority submitted the unaudited REAC on October
23, 2015 (and it was due by November 30, 2014). |n addition, the audited submission was due by
June 30™ and is also late.

Recommendation: The Authority should make every effort to file its REAC submission imely.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. We are in the process of establishing controls
to ensure that the REAC filing is submitted timely.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-003 Eligibility — Tenant Files
Pubtic and Indian Housing Pregram — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: Forty tenant files were selected for testing, but testing was suspended after testing 20 files
as a result of the following instances of noncompliance were noted in the 20 files tesied:

« 12 instances of not using the correct utility allowance schedule. The annual Board approved
changes to the utility aliowances were not well communicated to the property managers.

« 5 instances of not calculating the tenant's annual income preperly based on the supporting
documentation in the file.

« 3instances of the required annual recertification not being done timely — in all three cases the
annual recertifications were done one month late.

« 3 instances of the EiV report not being obtained as part of the annual recertification
performed.

¢ 1 instance of assets not being listed on the 50058 and income related thereto not being
catculated and included as part of the annual income of the tenant.

« 1 instance of not obtaining documentation to verify full-time student status of child age 18 or
older.

« 1 instance of a lack of a signed tenant certification in the file certifying as to accuracy of
information provided on the 50058,

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase training to
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for verification
of tenant information and calculation of tenant rents.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation, We are implementing review procedures and

providing training to insure that the applicable HUD regulations are being followed for tenant
certification.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Carrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-004 Special Tests and Provisions — Waiting List and New Admissions
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Controf
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 40 apptlicants on the current waiting list and 9 new admissions for the year, the
following instances of noncompliance were noted:

« The Board approved preference for elderly, near-elderly, disabled or working families were
not being used for 2, 3, 4 or 5 bedroom units. The staff of the Autherity misundersiood the
preference and were only applying it tc applicants on the one bedroom waiting list.

« The Authority lacks the proper controls and procedures to track the aging of an applicant to
determine when the applicant may qualify for the near-elderly preference.

« One applicant's original applicaticn could not be located to verify data on the current waiting
list.

« Three instances existed where the date of the original applicaticn did not agree with the
application date shown on the current waiting list.

« One instance where the applicant was on the one bedroom waiting list when updated
information in the application file indicated a change in family size but the applicant had not
been placed on the larger bedroom waiting list.

» Two instances where the criminal background checks were performed more than 20 months
and 32 months before admission.

» Five instances where it appears new tenants were admitted ahead of other applicants with
older dates of application and/or preference.

Recommendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase training to
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for waiting lists
and new admissions including preferences. In addition, the Authority should implement a review
procedure to make sure that all tenants are admitted in the proper order, and that all efigible
applicants are inciuded on the waiting list.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendaticn. We are implementing review procedures and
providing training to insure that the applicable HUD regulations are being followed for waiting lists.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-005 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Heusing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: Forty tenant files were selected for testing, but testing was suspended after testing 20 flles
as a result of the following instances of noncompliance noted in the 20 files tested:

e ¥ &

All twenty files did not include the original signed applications (though current applications
were in the files}.

7 instances in which Form 214 was not included in the file.

10 instance where the file did not include the signed lease agreement.

8 instance where the file did not include the signed HAP agreement.

6 instances where the lead based paint notice was not included in the file.

2 instances of not calculating the tenant’s annual incorme properly based on the supporting
documentation in the file.

2 instances of failed inspecticns where the re-inspection was not performed within 30 days.
1 instance of the EIV report documentation net included in the file,

Recommendation; The Authority should improve review procedures and increage training to
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for verification
of tenant infermation and calculation of tenant rents.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. We are implementing review procedures and
providing training to insure that the applicable HUD regulations are being followed for tenant
certification.

2014-006 Special Tests and Provisions — Waiting List and New Admlgsions
Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Controf
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 25 applicants on the current waiting list and 7 new admissions for the year, the
following instances of noncompliance were noted:

8 instances where the date and time on the waiting list did not agree to the original
application. Al of these instances relate to 2009 where in an attempt to implement the
Authority's preference for tenants residing in South Bend, the Authority personnel placed a
secondary date and time stamp on the application of all applicants who at the time were not
residents of South Bend. Notusing the original application date will cause all such applicants
to be considered in the wrong order when and if their address should change to being a
resident of Scuth Bend.

3 Instances where the original application was not in the file, thus the date and time on the
waiting list could not be verified.
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HoUusING AUTHORITY OF THE CiTY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Carrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-006 Special Tests and Provisions —~ Waiting List and New Admissions (Continued)

¢ 1 instance where the determination of rent reasonableness was not documented in the file
priot to admission.

Reccmmendation: The Authority should improve review procedures and increase training o
employees and reviewers to insure that the Authority is in compliance with HUD rules for waiting lists
and new admissions. In addition, the Autherity should implement a review procedure to make sure
that all tenants are admitted in the proper order, and that all eligible applicants are included on the
waiting list.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. We are implementing review procedures and
providing training to insure that the applicable HUD regulations are being foliowed for waiting lists.

2014-007 Special Tests and Provisions - Housing Quality Standard (HQS) Failed Inspections
Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871

Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: In testing 25 failed HQ'S inspections the following instances of nencompliance were noted:

« 8 instances where the original failed inspection report was not in the file, sc it was not
possible to evaluate whether any ot the required repairs would be an immediate hazard to
health and safety (a 24 hour repair requirement).

« 5 instances where the required repairs were not made in a timely manner and the Authority
failed to timely abate HAP payments due to the landlord.

« 1instance where the inspection revealed that there was exposed wiring on the stove, butthis
was not identified by the Authority as a repair that would be an immediate hazard to health
and safety that would require a 24 hour repair.

Recommendation: The Authority should make sure that failed HQS inspections are done within the
required time frame or are properly abated. If the Authority doesn't do the inspection within the
required time frame and doesn’t abate the HAP payment, the Authority should document the reason
in order to determine if it was reasonable. Also, the Authority should assure that all critical repairs for
iife threatening deficiencies are completed within 24 hours.

Action Taken: We cancur with the recommendaticn. We will implement procedures to assure that
failed HQS inspections are performed during the required time frame or initiate abatement
procedures and will document the reasons for the result of each failed inspection and assure that all
critical repairs are completed timely.

52




HousING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-008 Reporting - SEMAP

Housing Voucher Program — CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Controf
Material Noncompliance

Condition: During our testing of the Section Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP), we
nated that the Authority failed to provide documentation to support its assessment of the following
SEMAP Indicators:

« Indicator 2 — Reasonable Rent
* Indicator 3 - Determination of Adjusted Income
» Indicator 6 - HQS Enforcement

Recommendation: The Authority needs ta correctly perform and document the SEMAP review and
report accurately according to the samples tested.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation and will maintain the documentation to suppart
our canclusions for the SEMAP report.

2014-009 Davis-Bacon Act

Capitai Fund Program CFDA 14,872
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority did not provide documentation to show that it complied with the Davis-Bacon
act related to reviewing ceriified payrolis to make sure the payrolls are in excess of the prevailing
wage rates in the area and did not provide documentation that employee interviews were being
conducted.

Recommendation: The Authority needs to properly document its compliance with the Davis-Bacon
Act for all construction related awards.

Action Taken: We are implementing review procedures and providing training to insure that the
applicable Davis-Bacon Act regulations are being adhered to and properly documented.

2014-010 Special Tests and Provisions — Declarations of Trust

Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Conditien: The Authority could not iocate the Declarations of Trust (DOT) for its public housing
properties.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-010 Special Tests and Provisions — Declarations of Trust (Continued)

Recommendation: The Authority should locate the declarations of trust for all public housing
properiies and have them available for review.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation and will locate these documents and properly
store them and have available for future review.

2014-011 Speciai Tests and Provisions — Bank Depository Agreements
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompfiance

Condition: The Authority couid not locate the bank Depository Agreements for its bank accounts, nor
could it provide documentation from one bank for pledged securities for amounts in excess of FDIC
insurance amounts,

Recommendation: The Authority should either locate all the bank depositery agreements or execute
new ones for all of its bank accounts; and the Authority should require all banks to provide periodic
documentation that pledged securities are provided for amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation and will locate the missing depository
agreements or will have new ones executed by the banks. Additionally, we will contact the one bank
to obtain documentation of pledged securities.

2014-012 Special Tests and Provisions — Project Based Budgeting
Public and Indian Housing Program — CFDA 14.850
Material Weakness in Internal Contro!
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority did not timely adopt budgets nor did it periodically review budget to actual
comparisons and address significant variances ameng budget to actual cata.

Recommendation: The Authority should prepare project based budgets timely and should track
budget to actual amounts and explain significant variances timely.

Action Taken; We concur with the recommendation and have recently hired a new fee accounting
firm to assist us with budget preparation and monitoring.
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HoUsING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND
South Bend, Indiana

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2014

2014-013 Reporling - FSS Escrows
Housing Voucher Program —~ CFDA Number 14.871
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority was unable to provide an accounting showing the FSS escrow balance
applicable to each FSS family. '

Recommendation: The Authority heeds to create the accounting recards 1o properly support the FSS
escrow balances for each participating family and establish controls to make sure this accounting is
maintained and reconciled on a regular hasis.

Action Taken: We cancur with the recommendation and will create the reconciliation of the F&8
escrow balances and will assign personnel to maintain this reconcillation on an ongoing basis.

2014-014 Activities Allowed or Unallowed — Interprogram Activity
Public and Indiar: Housing Program — CFDA 14.8580
Material Weakness in Internal Control
Material Noncompliance

Condition: The Authority has loaned monies from the Public and Indian Housing Program to the
COCC. As of September 30, 2014 these loans totaled $942,841.

Recommendation: The Authority shouid develop a plan based on budgeting and monitoring of
COCC and HCV expenses to have the ability to reimburse funds to the Public and Indian Housing
Program.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation and will begin working with our new fee
accountants and with HUD to develop a plan to repay these monies.

Effective Date: August 15, 2016

Contact Information

Tonya Robertson, Interim Executive Eirector
Housing Authority of South Bend

501 Alonzo Watson Drive

South Bend, IN 46601

{574) 235-9346
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Housing Authority of the City of South Bend
South Bend, Indiana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the twelve months ended September 30, 2014

Federal Program or Disbursements
CFDA Award or
FEDERAL GRANTOR Number Amount Expenditures
U. S, Department of HUD
Public Housing:
Low-rent Housing Program * + 14.850 % 2,722,680 & 2,722,680
Capital Fund Program * 4 14872 2,651,948 534,785
Housing Choice Voucher Program * + 14,871 11,338,146 11,338,148
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control * 14.800 406,678 406,678
TOTAL $ 17120452 § 15003,289

This schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Housing Autharity of the City of South Bend and is presented
on the fulf accruat basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the

preparaiion of the basic financlal statements.
* Type A Program
** Type B Program

+ Major Program

See auditor's report,
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Housing Authority of South Bend (IN015)
SCUTH BEND, IN
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/A-133 Fiscal Year End: 09/30/2014
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Housing Authority of South Bend (INO15)
SOUTH BEND, IN
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audiled/A-133

Fiseal Year End: 09/30/2014
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Housing Authority of Scuth Bend (IND15)
SCUTH BEND, IN
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Audited/A-133 Fiseal Year £nd: 09/30/2014
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70730 Book Kesping Fep 3 H §189,207 $169.207 -$189,207 50
70740 Fron Ling Servize Fea : i H -

70750 Other Foes 1! ,f ..... - .
70700 Tolnl Fea Revenup : . soazer? 5942977 942,977
; BRpp— : i

70860 Oihar Governmen Grems - ) 3

71100 Invesiment inteme - Unresiricted 51,258 " 303 ) 1 $64% $£2.208 52,20;
71200 Mengage tnlgresi Incormg i
71300 Procesds from Oispesifon of Asseis Held lor Sale i T
71310 Cosl of Sals of Assels o o : -

71400 Fraud Recovary 20,7688 : T szo.7e8 520760
71500 Omer Revenve $67.125 344,352 segaase t S18.568 098,485 | ‘sa5b 495
71600 Glain o Loss an Sala of Capital Assels T .

72000 lnvestment (ncome - Resticled S677 - 3677 o -3—5:(‘7— -
75000 Torel Fevan - 34,551,607 S451.050 1 §17,208.344 661545 | SIBABA0SS | -SG42ETT | $17.251.118

- 1

G100 Administiaive Selaries 1™ $an2 206 $117,620 $295.950 $560,554 £1,366,415 $1,356,415
81200 Audiling Foes TS T £4,733 $1,657 19,000 $19,000
91300 Mansgement Fes sa0,ae1 1 $168,209 $698,600 5688,600 50
91310 Bookkeaping Fea h 50,498 $120.708 $162,207 -$189,207 30
91408 Advbriiaing and Marketing $21,468 521,468 $27,688
81500 Empiopas Banshi contriulions . Adminizaiive $69,861 $i8.001 1 $142,004 198,851 5390,697 390,507
91800 Office Expenses Ty 498,967 £16.086 £71,304 §216 $70.869 SPE6,462 $P66,402
91700 Lepal Expanse 56,354 $180.806 $196, $196,B80
91800 Traval 550 $2.950 5641 55406 s, 59,047
91840 Allocated Querhsad [ i

91900 Other $40,060 " $55.a58 §7,528 27,070 $130,429 $130,423
§600 Total Operaiing - Adrnisimtye §1228221 532,58 013078 5215 £1,004503 | 33278190 §867.807 $2,550,902 |

§2000 Assel Managemenl Fea $65,170 R TH O T
2100 Tenan! Services - Salanes $3.108 $3,108
92200 Rolocstion Cogls
92300 Employes Sensht Conirbutians - Tsnaat Services $6,445 . §5aa8 88,445
92400 Tenant Sarvices - Giner 51,581 ] A o 31681 ) 81,581
92500 Towal Tenant Senvices £71,134 50 50 s0 30 §11,134 50 §11,134
93100 Weler T T ver g T s21e 58,745 P R LT
43200 Eloctichy 217,124 i szap $19660 | sa0T104 $237,194
33300 Gas T $187.668 B Rt S $2:064 | $208.942 1 sncea
83400 Fuel T R U
3600 Labor o N
" paat) Sewer i . .
93700 Employee Benalit Coninbulions - Ulitiies :[
03806 Otner Utilies Expense f o
93000 7ol Unikies o TV e 1 en Vs “s6 k0,540 T I - T
94100 Ordinary Maintenante and Qperations - Labor §672,849 5 : o " 551’2._8“-_{?” $572,849
3;2:'0 Ordiciecy Mair anc Oporations - Molenals snd 5201,529 ! sab | S48 §1,482 $204,894 $204,595
84300 Orcinary Meinienanoe ard Opocalions Contacts S628532 52,886 B4151 ssgsz i oseameso ! ) SGedcs |
84500 Employes Benefil Contrigutions - Orginaty Malnisnance £218,904 I 326,004 5216204
84000 Tola) Mainienenca 675,814 | 33260 55,584 £0 sa5H $),697.207 $0 $1.637,301
§ 88100 Fifc:\_tucUVB Setvices - Labor - £10, 99.“_ A b s $10,399 $10,999
E 93200 Prolective Services - Oiher Gonimet Costs 1 ! L “‘5112.5‘11 172911
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Heusing Authority of Scuth Bend (INO15)
SOQUTH BEND, IN
Entity wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Auditec/A-133

Fispal Year End: 09/30/2014

Projett Toiak

1 14.900 Load-
Based Paint
razawd Control
In Privataly-
Owned Housing

14,671 Housing E6.2 Componant

Choica Vouchers

T
1

Unii - Blended

jeinield]

Subintat

ELM

mrand

Toml

05300 Proleciiva Services - Other

25500 Empleyce Banalll Contnbynons - Prolactive Sarvices

$735

$735

§725

95000 Toww! Protactive Services

484,045

S0

§0

50

&0

$184,045

50

184,045

961 §0 Propany (ns;ame

$87,684

518,098

10,842

£117,824

5117 624

96120 Liabiity lnsurance

$41.720

518,554

$42,133

$103.415

£100,418

96130 Workman's Compansaiion

311,868

$4,421

58,014

24,304

$24,204

96140 Al Diker insuranes

SZB.ETE

£BN4

$7,286

§13,011

549,587

$49,587

96160 Total insurence Premiums

$168,058

1604

850,387

§72,002

a4 $204,931

094 831

98200 Olher General Expenses

$290,280

$8,606

209,174

06210 Compensaied Absances

£250.1

98300 Paytenls i Lisy of Taxes

96400 Bad dgabl - Tenant Rents

31,185

51,185

81,185

96500 Bad dsbi - Mortpages

06800 Bad debt - Other

46800 Sevelal_me Expanag

58000 Total Other Gener;i"é;penses

s

$250,280

S0

0

5256009

288,008

$6710 Interesi of Morigage (or Bonds) Peyshie

85720 Intares! on Nolss Payable (Shor and Long Tetm}

95730 Amortization of Bord Issus Costs

#6700 Telal Interest Expense and Amenlzalion Gosl

b3

30

0

50

0

50

50

96300 Toiel Operafing Expenses

8385211t

1

$626,756

SB78,592

5216

51,135,168

$6,392,843

-5042,977

£5,540,666

91008 Excess of Operatuy) Hevenes over Operating Exprnses

$639.418

-$75,726

$11,350.752

$433

573,62

3

11,801,252

$0

£11,801,252

97100 Exiraprdinary Maintenance

e e o =

7260 itafized

a7300 Heusing Assisance Paymens

£11,050,626

311,060,626

$11,050,626

87350 HAP Ponabliny-n

5604,271

$804,271

sabaz2ry

97900 Depreciation Expanse

$1,146,564

541,072

$3e.008

$1,222,625

51,222,635

87500 Fraud Losses

7600 TepMal Outeys - Govemmema! Funds

97700 Cein Principal Payment - Governmenal Funds

97800 Owelfing Unils Renl Expanse

20000 Toial Expenses

£4.998,675

$526,768

$12,774 561 |

8216 " §1,170,087

519476275

~8942.077

415,527,208

10016 Gpgralng Transter In

10020 Cpsreting 1ransier Out

10030 Gperaling Transters fromfto Frimary Government

10040 Operating Translers romia Componant Uil

10050 Proceads from Nuies, Lonns and Bonds

10060 Proceeds rom Prapery Salss

10070 Exiraordinary hsms, Net GainfLess

o

10080 Specal lems (Net Gafivlous)

10081 Invat Projecy Excess Cash Transler In

10092 inlor Project Excess Cash Transfer Oul

10043 Transtera botwesn Program and Pigject - In

10094 Trensters betwesh Projstt and Program - Out

1610;‘?&& Ciaher (Inancing Sources {Uses)

3¢

£0

$0

50

§0

50

30

S0

56000 Excose (Delciancy) of Total Hevenis Over (Unden 1 miat
Expenses

-$447,148

i
]
$75.726 1 -$545,217

£431

-5208,52

2

-51,276,180

L

-§1,276,180

?'Tﬁzo Reguies Annwgl Debl Pincipal Payments

£13,585

0

11000 Beginaing Eauity

£B,136,326

£328,847

313,321

$186,144

50

§15,084

" sa0.000

340,000

50

530

JBED

38,956,997

11040 Prior Penod Adiustments, Equity Transters and
Conection of Errors

351,095

-§326.847

-$87 037

691,475

§340,699

£608,283

i
!
i saesspar
i
H

$608.383

11056 Changes in Compensaled Absence Ralance

11080 Changes in Comlingenl Liabilliy Balance

11070 Changss in Uaracognized Pansien Tmnsiton Uablity

$1080 Ghanges in Special Tarm/Sevarance Banslis Linbdily {

63




Housing Authority of South Bend (IND15)
SOUTH BEND, IN
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Augtted/A-133 Fiscal Year End: 09/30/2014
e - T
! 14.90¢ Logg-
1 Based Paim
_ 14.871 Housing :8,2 Componant
Project Tola! Han-i Coentrol Cheica Vouthers] Uit - Slended coce Sublotal ELIM Tors
in Privalely-
Owned Housing

. e st b e Lo L L8580 1 e e ] 31 o s o s ] L s ko172 001 0 S0P 4 e d 14 Rt P00 Pt e s e b g e e ke
11680 Changes in Akowanca for Doubtul Actounts - Dwelling i ' '
Fenls : 3 o
11166 Changes It Allowance for Doubtiul Accounts « Othar 1
1117 Agminfstranve Fes Equity r -51,043.075 -$1,043,075
11180 Housing ASSIE(ENCe Payments Equity $556,0685 F ss96,065 T T eensnes

30 Unit Monibs Avarcble 12117 0 25488 o 37605 37605
L1120 humber af Unit Monlhs Leased 11483 a 22051 o 34434 34434
11270 Excess Cash ""5854,455 5854,455 864,495
19610 Land Purchases 30 T T g s 50
11620 Buiding Puichases - 5312173 P 5312173 312,73 . :
11630 Fumnliure & Fquipment - Dweling Purchases 30 o o $0 ! $a & ;
1184 Fumnore & Equipment - Admiistrabve Purcheses $0 30 5 50 I gO
{1650 1 I Improvements Purchasas 30 st s 1 s
(1880 IMastrucrara Pyrchiases R o R R D R
[ 13510 GFFP Debt Gorvice Paymenis £0 $c 0 o !
{13801 Repiacement Housing Factor Fyrds 5 & ] 30 50 0 i
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